HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 17, 2009
1:39 p.m
1:39:22 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Representative Stoltze called the House Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:39 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Allan Austerman
Representative Harry Crawf ord
Representative Anna Faircl ough
Representative Richard Foster
Representative Les Gara

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representative Mke Kelly

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representati ve Wodi e Sal non

ALSO PRESENT

Jane Pierson, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras; Anne
Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Servi ces
Secti on-Juneau, Crim nal Di vi si on, Depar t ment of Law;
Representative Bob Lynn; Dirk Mffat, Staff, Representative
Lynn; Kevin Brooks, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Adm ni stration; Representative Bryce Edgnon; G eg Wnegar,
Director, Alaska Dvision of Investnents, Departnment of
Commer ce

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Qui nl an St ei ner, Director, Publ i c Def ender Agency,
Departnment of Admnistration; Witney Brewster, Director,
Division of Mtor Vehicles, Departnment of Admnistration;
Robi n Bronen, Executive Director, Al aska Immgration Justice
Project; Matthew Kerr, conputer programer, Anchorage; Kay
Gaj ewski , Anchor age; Bill Scannel |, Anchor age; Krista
Stearns, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Mtor
Vehi cl es

SUMVARY
HB 3 "An Act relating to issuance of identification

cards and to issuance of driver's licenses; and
providing for an effective date."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



HB 3 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 20 (FSH)
"An Act relating to commercial fishing |oans for
energy efficiency wupgrades and increasing the
maxi num anmount for certain |oans under the
Commerci al Fishing Loan Act; and providing for an
effective date.”

CSHB 20 (FSH) was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

HB 98 "An Act relating to mnor consuming and repeat
m nor consum ng; and providing for an effective
date."

HB 98 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

1: 39: 38 PM

#hb9o8

HOUSE BI LL NO. 98

"An Act relating to mnor consuming and repeat mnor
consum ng; and providing for an effective date."

JANE PI ERSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JAY RAMRAS, presented
t he sponsor statenent explaining three fixes in the bill.

HB 98 fixes a problem that occurred with the enactnent
of HB 359, a bill that passed the House unanimously in
the 25th Legislative Session. HB 359 originated due to
the desire of Al askan youths to join the mlitary and
not being able to due to probation restrictions from a
m nor consum ng charge that nmay have occurred 5 years
previously. Unfortunately, when the bill was drafted,
it left a loop-hole in the repeat mnor consum ng |aw.

HB 98 fixes this |oop-hole by anmendi ng the | anguage of
AS 04.16.050(c) to include in the list of predicate
of fenses for repeat mnor consum ng "previously granted
suspended inposition of sentence", and "a prior
convi ction under AS 04.16.050 (b)(2).”

This new | anguage will now cover all repeat offenders,
no matter how their previous mnor consum ng charges
wer e adj udi cat ed.

Co-Chair Stoltze requested a sunmary of the ultimate goal in
passing House Bill 98. Ms. Pierson referred to HB 359 that
states a mnor convicted of mnor consumng could be taken
of f probation in order to join the mlitary, play sports, or

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



cross into Canada, so their lives would not be placed on
hol d because of a m stake. House Bill 98 is a technical fix
to that bill.

Representative Gara questioned what would happen if this
bill passed. He wondered if it was correct that a young
person, with a first time arrest for having a beer, the |aw
now states they are convicted. Ms. Pierson stated that the
m nor may be convicted two ways; first under AS 04.16. 050
(b) (1) which grants a suspension of sentence and pl aces the
m nor on probation or AS 04.16.050 (b)(2) which inposes a
fine of at |east $200 but not nore than $600, requires the
mnor to attend alcohol information school or be on
probation for up to one year. It further states that the
court may suspend a portion of the fine if the mnor is
required to pay for education or treatnent.

Representative Gara reminded the conmmttee that when this
bill came before them |last year sonme nenbers wanted to fix
the law, but were net with resistance. He contended that he
di sliked the “convicted” |anguage for a 17 year old caught
having a beer. He judged this offense could be settled with
a fine or require education but not wuse “conviction”
| anguage.

1:45: 43 PM

Ms. Pierson replied that under AS 94.16.050 (1) (3) the
statute states that previously convicted to exclude a
conviction for mnor consumng, therefore there is sone
| eeway. Representative Gara enphasized he did not want this
person treated as a crimnal and reiterated it should not be
considered a crine. Ms. Pierson replied it would be a crine.
Representative Gara believed the bill needed further
exam nati on

1: 46: 50 PM

Representative Austerman expressed the sanme concern as
Representative Gara. He believed nore tine was needed to

investigate this bill. Co-Chair Stoltze expressed there had
been intent to pass the bill, but he believed if there were
still questions, the bill needed further exam nation.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Dl RECTOR, PUBLI C DEFENDER  AGENCY
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION, testified via tel econference,
and affirmed the departnment would look into the questions
expressed by Representative Gara and Representative
Austerman. Representative Gara contended the statute is
strange in that it is only statute on the books that talks
about probation and a suspended inposition of sentence for
sonet hing that does not receive a jail sentence.

1: 49: 36 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTI ON- JUNEAU, CRIM NAL DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW agreed
that a mnor consuming is not a crine for the first and
second tinme but the word “crinme” is used because it is not
clear what else to call it. In 2001 the | aw was changed for
m nor consuming in the state to recognize that mnors try
t hings and should not be tagged with a crinme but at present
there is no other |abel to assign to this offense. Co-Chair
Stoltze asked if this was a semantic issue, calling it a
crime for lack of a better definition. M. Carpeneti agreed
it should not be a crime, but crine-related |anguage is
used. Co-Chair Stoltze asked if Ms. Pierson’ s testinony was
in error. M. Carpeneti asserted that the first and second
offenses are not crinmes but the third wuld be a Cass B
m sdeneanor. Representative Gara asked if |anguage could be
inserted into the statute that said the first two offenses
are not considered crines. Ms. Carpeneti expressed the need
to look at the statute nore carefully before making any
final decisions.

1: 51: 48 PM

Representative Gara asked if this was the only statute that
had probation and suspended inposition of sentences where
there is no possible jail tine. Ms. Carpeneti believed that
was true, but needed to investigate further.

1: 52: 16 PM

Representative Austernman reiterated he was not trying to
protect the habitual drinker, but he also did not want to
penalize a mnor for trying sonething for the first tinme.

Representative Joule wondered if citations, something |ess
than crimes, could be wused in this case. M. Carpeneti
explained that a citation is a charging or ticketing
docunent and caution would be needed in using that word, but
it could be considered. Chair Stoltze interjected that this
di scussion would depart from Representative Ranras’s intent
froma technical fix to a substantive change to an exiting
statute. He would want all interested parties to have a say
bef ore maki ng such a change.

HB 98 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

1: 55: 02 PM

#hb3

HOUSE BI LL NO 3
"An Act relating to issuance of identification cards
and to issuance of driver's licenses; and providing for
an effective date."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



Dl RK MOFFAT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BOB LYNN expressed that
HB 3 contends that an applicant for an Al askan driver’s
license or identification card be able to prove who they are
conbined with legal status presence in the State of Al aska
and that the license expires when their [|egal presence
expires. He stated if soneone can not wal k down the street
legally they should not be able to drive.

1: 56: 39 PM

Representative Gara wunderstood that only |egal Al aska
residents or visitors get a driver’'s license, but he
wondered if the Department of Mdtor Vehicles (DW) wll now
be screening legal residents and inpose hassles for
everyone. M. Mffat replied there would be no requirenent

for those with an existing Alaska driver’s Ilicense or
identification card to show any proof; they wll be
grandfathered in by the system He added only new
individuals seeking an Alaska driver’s license or
identification card wll be required to show a primary

docunent. This would also apply to those who |icense or card
has expired over 90 days or has been revoked.
Representative Gara expressed concern that this mght be a
backdoor way of inplementing the Real ID Act. M. Mffat
interjected that had been a major concern of Representative
Lynn. This act does not conply with the Real I D Act because
there is a 90 day grace period, whereas the federal bil
requires everyone to show personal docunmentary evidence
every tinme they renew their license. He added that SB 202,
sponsored by Senator Bill Welechowski, passed |ast year,
made it against the law for the State of Al aska to cooperate
with the federal governnment in inplenmenting the Real 1D Act.
M. Mffat added that when Senator W el echowski was asked if
HB 3 would affect HB 202, the senator replied it would not
have an i npact.

2: 00: 45 PM

Representative Gara responded that the word “solely” allows
themto inplement the Real ID Act. He stressed his greatest
concern was an inposed hassle for Al askans in order to catch

a few others. He noted that the bill will inpact those who
nove here and attenpt to get a license and those who apply
for license renewal. He offered that there needs to be a

bal ance agai nst individuals who have done nothing wong and
a few who may.

M. Mffat expressed no desire to punish anyone, but wth
existing identity fraud it is inportant to know anyone
comng to this state is who they say they are. He added t hat
sonme other state’'s requirenments are stricter and sonme nore
| eni ent. When Al askans get their first driver’s license they
nmust show the proper identification.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



2:02: 31 PM

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF MOTOR VEH CLES,
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION testified via teleconference
and addressed three itenms. She noted that the DW already
requires when applying for an original driver’'s |icense
various fornms of identification. This bill does not change
that requirenent only expires the license or identification
card when the docunentation expires. She also noted that the
DW is aware of the legislature’s stance on the Real |ID Act
t hrough HIR 19 and SB 202.

2: 04: 57 PM

Representative Joule pointed out that in |ooking over the
regul ations on primary and secondary docunents there is a
reference to the Bureau of Indian Affairs card or triba
card (State of Alaska, Division of Mtor Vehicles Secondary
I dentification docunents, page 3, line 2, copy on file). He
guestioned if individuals fromrural areas of the state who
have not established any of the listed required primary
docunents could use the tribal card as a primary source
docunent .

2: 06: 35 PM

Ms. Brewster acknow edged she is aware of the issue and is
willing to look at the tribal card as a primary docunent.
She expressed being unfamliar how the cards are issued and
what information is provided to create the card.

2:07:18 PM

Representative Joule asked if she would actively pursue
di scovering this information. Ms. Brewster replied she would
be interested in talking wth Representative Joule’s
contacts. Representative Joule responded he would follow up
Wi th appropriate contacts for her.

2: 08:43 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze indicated that all the proposed anendnents
avai lable for this bill would be faxed to her office.

Representative Gara referred to HB 3, |ine 14, and asked why
the section that applies to 60 year olds is needed.

2:11: 09 PM

Representative Lynn indicated it would be a convenience to
elders and less noney to the state in getting a driver’s
license or an identification card. M. Mffat indicated that
presently identification cards are issued free for those 60

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



and ol der and the new card would be recognized for 8 years
i nstead of five.

2:12: 59 PM

Representative Gara supported the intent to nake it easier
for seniors, but he did not believe there was expiration for
identification cards. Ms. Brewster reported that there is a
5 year expiration date for identification cards, but the
proposed |egislation would provide a courtesy to those 60
and above by extending it 8 years. Representative Gara
guestioned why it is necessary for a senior citizen from a
rural area to renew an identification card. M. Brewster
answered that it is the law and it was inportant to nake
sure that individuals have the nost current identification.

2:14: 47 PM

M. Mffat elaborated that cards should not |ast forever
becasue identity theft could occur. Co-Chair Stoltze
indicated that the commttee was not sure where to go with
t hi s di scussi on.

2:16: 00 PM

Representati ve Austerman asked how many people, outside the
scope of this law, are already getting driver’s licenses.
Representative Lynn responded that he does not think anyone
knows that answer. M. Mffat also did not know that nunber.

2:17: 27 PM

Ms. Brewster explained that the DW does not keep statistics
of those turned away or have an expired |icense.
Representative Lynn responded that it would be hard to keep
such dat a.

2:18: 13 PM

Representative Crawford indicated that he was not famliar
with the matricula consular card (HB 3, page 2, line 25).
Representative Lynn explained that matricula consul ar cards
are issued by the Mexican governnment declaring their
citizens have a right to be in the United States. M.
Brewster remarked that the card is issued by a consulate

wi t hout any backup information to verify identity.
Representative Gara nentioned on page 3, line 20, those who
are allowed to be in the country and wondered if this
targeted all permtted people or if there were other

cl assifications being m ssed.

2:19: 58 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



Representative Lynn answered |egal presence includes those
W th unexpired visas, unexpired work permts, green cards,
or ammesty certificates. Ms. Brewster indicated that she had
not hi ng to add.

2:20: 49 PM

ROBI N BRONEN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA | MM GRATI ON JUSTI CE
PRQJIECT, testified via teleconference, identified her
organi zati on as an Anchorage non-profit group that provides
| egal services throughout Alaska for inmgrants and
refugees. She expounded that this issue is conplex and DW
was making identity decisions on who can get a driver’s
license or an identity card. She noted that nost of her
organi zation’s work concerned donestic violence and human
trafficking victins. Since July 2008, her group has worked
with over 150 imm grants who are victins of crines. They are
often married to US citizens whose responsibility it is to
make sure their inmm grant spouse gets the proper inmmgration
docunentation to live and work in the United States. Many of
the wonen live in renote areas and their inability to get
driver’s licenses puts another barrier in their search for
safety and protection. The legislation as it is now witten
excludes these inmgrants fromgetting a driver’s |icense or
identity docunent. M. Bronen provided a recent case of a
woman who went to renew her driver's license, was reported
to honeland security by the DW, and is now caught in
deportation proceedings. M. Bronen suggested that the
fiscal note underestimtes the true cost. She gave exanples
of much higher costs in other states.

2:25:10 PM

Ms. Bronen explained that the matricula consular card is
i ssued by the Mexican governnent and does nothing to verify
a person’s legal immgration status in the United States.
She added another area of concern is the First Nations
peopl e of Canada who are allowed to enter the United States
pursuant to the Jay Treaty wthout needing inmmgration
docunents. Under the proposed HB 3 legislation, the First
Nations people would not be allowed to get a driver’'s
license even though they are legally allowed to be in the
United States.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked Ms. Bronen if she knew how many
illegal immgrants were in Al aska. Ms. Bronen indicated her
organi zati on does not keep track of that information because
her group works with immgrants that are in the process of
getting their legal docunentation. The organization is
presently working with 700 immgrants in the process of
getting their |egal docunentation.

2:26:48 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



Representative Lynn asked if the people M. Bronen is
wor king with have |legal status. Ms. Bronen replied they are
working to get their legal status docunentation. The
organi zation has had 100% success in getting the
docunent ati on

2:27: 24 PM

Representative Gara asked Ms. Bronen about the list on page
3 of people legally allowed to be in the United States and
asked if that covered everyone or if other categories should
be added. Ms. Bronen indicated that many people would be
excluded under this bill. I'mmgration |aws constantly change
and the Ilist would need to be continually nodified.
Representative Gara asked if soneone could be legally in the
United States, applying for legal status, but not vyet
obtained it. M. Bronen answered from an inmmgration |ega
perspective, according to the Inmgration Nationality Act; a
person who is in the process of acquiring any inmmgration
docunents does not have legal status until the docunents
have been approved.

2:29: 37 PM

MATTHEW KERR, COVPUTER PROGRAMMVER, ANCHORAGE, testified via
tel econference, infornmed that he is not against the basic
idea of the bill, but the bill does not account for how the
United States immgration law wrks or the added
consequences of overburdening the DW. Al aska already has
| egal presence requirenents inplenented requiring proper
immgration docunments for foreign license applicants. He
disagreed with the section of the bill that ties the
expiration date of the driver’'s license or identification
card with the | ast date of |egal presence; people legally or
temporarily in the United States for a long duration
frequently change inmmgration status. M. Kerr noted that
because the legal processing rate for inmgrants can be 12
nonths or |onger an applicant should not be punished by
bei ng unable to renew or get a license because of the |ega
delay. M. Kerr listed sone conmon sense nethods to preserve
the full I nt ent of this bill yet streanline the
i npl enent ati on.

2:34: 04 PM

Representative Gara requested M. Kerr send sone |anguage
and suggestions to the conmttee.

KAY GAJEWSKI, ANCHORAGE, testified via teleconference
believed HB 3 puts public safety at risk. She opposed the
bill, stressing her belief that immgration issues should be
handl ed on the federal |evel.

2: 36: 00 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



Bl LL SCANNELL, ANCHORAGE, testified via teleconference,
expressed his opposition to the Real ID Act since its
enact nent and does not like HB 3. He believed HB 3 had been
dealt with last year with SB 202 when the state rejected the
Real ID Act. He described HB 3 as an immgration bill, not
best practices for Alaska driver’s |licenses.

2:38: 13 PM

KRI STA STEARNS, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
MOTOR VEHI CLES testified via teleconference, indicated she
was avail abl e for questions.

Representative Gara suggested that help was needed in the
| anguage of the proposed anendnents. Ms. Stearns indicated
she would l|ook at the I|anguage. She believed it was
problematic for the DW to upgrade conputers and funding
could be interpreted as Real 1D

Co-Chair Stoltze indicated that Anendnents 1 and 2 wll be
sent to Ms. Stearns to exam ne

2:42: 55 PM

KEVI N BROCKS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON commented that SB 202, passed |ast year, was
a conprom se. He stressed that the Real I D Act is very thick
and contains sone common sense good business practices for
the DW but this bill does not plan to nake the state
conpliant with Real I D. He approved of HB 3 as good busi ness
sense of Al aska.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the admnistration had taken a

position on illegal immgrants getting driver’'s |icenses.
M. Brooks replied that the adm nistration believes people
should have a |egal presence to get a |icense.

Representative Gara asserted that he had a problemw th the
work “solely.” He acknow edged that nost in the departnent
woul d not cross the |ine but keeping the word “sol ely” gives
the DW the right to inplenment the Real ID Act. He
chal | enged that when crimnal statutes are not witten with
certainty, the discretion to interpret is left to |aw
enforcenment with potential negative results. A |law should be
witten that does not allow future directors or enpl oyees of
the DW to go down the road of inplenmenting the Real 1D Act.

2:46: 01 PM

Deputy Brooks appreciated the coments, but rem nded the
commttee that the departnment is subject every year to the
appropriation act and legislative audit that provides checks
and bal ances. Representative Gara remarked that the best
check is to wite the statute the correct way. M. Mffat

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



enphasi zed that Senator Welechowski, sponsor of SB 202,
said HB 3 would have no inpact on |egal presence or good
practices of the DW.

2:46: 47 PM

Representative Gara repeated that the Senator W el echowski
did not put the word “solely” into the bill and the
| egi slature has the obligation to wite it correctly. Co-
Chair Stoltze stated that he thought the concept was sinple

and | eaned toward Representative Lynn's bill. Representative
Lynn rem nded the commttee that the judiciary heard the
identical bill last year. Co-Chair Stoltze interjected that

| ast year’s decisions were not relevant this year.

2:47: 47 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze announced that public testinobny was now
cl osed.

2:49: 19 PM

Representati ve Fairclough nentioned her famliarity with the
Al aska Justice project from her work at a victims crisis
center. She related her personal experiences dealing with
immgrants brought into the country under false pretenses.
She wondered if there was consideration for those inside the
U. S. system trying to find freedom and justice.
Representative Lynn expressed his concern for people wth
problems getting their | egal docunent ati on, but he
mai ntai ned that was outside the scope of this bill; the
i ssue was the correct qualifications for a driver’s |license.
Representative Lynn stressed that the entire immgration
situation was difficult and involved, but he felt that if

sonmeone was in the country illegally they should not be able
to get a driver’'s license. M. Mffat stressed that this
bill was not trying to punish anyone, but hopefully

encourage non-United States citizens to keep their |egal
immgration status current.

2:51: 32 PM

Representative Fairclough contended that in her work wth
donmestic crisis victins, individuals my have their
imm gration papers kept fromthemin order to control their
lives and novenents. She maintained her concern for wonen
and children in these difficulties.

2:52: 59 PM

Represent ati ve Faircl ough asked Ms. Bronen if the people she
handl ed were seeking driver’s licenses in order to stay in
the country. Ms. Bronen answered that nost people were not
particularly seeking licenses, but it is a docunent nost

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



wil | need eventually to get safety and ©protection.
Representative Fairclough asked if there was a place
immgrants could ask for help to protect their rights inside
of the process. M. Bronen answered that processing
docunentation noves slowy and there is no process to get
earlier or waivered docunentation. Representative Fairclough
stated that if the police are responding to a donestic
vi ol ence or rape situation, the wvictims lack of
docunentation can not be used against them M. Sterns
replied that she was not an authority in crimnal |aw but
believed that |ack of docunentation is not used against a
victim

Representative Austerman wondered if he left the state for
90 days and received a Ilicense i anot her state what
docunents would he need to present order to reestablish
his Al aska |icense.

n
n

2:59: 16 PM

Ms. Brewster replied that he would need to provide one of
the listed primary docunments. Representative Austerman asked
how is showing the primary docunentation different fromthe
presented change in the law in BH 3. M. Brewster replied
that the DW was | ooking for the license to expire when the
docunent ati on expires.

Representative Gara expressed the need for nore tinme to
discuss and rewite this bill before passing. Co-Chair
Stoltze agreed that many questions still required acceptable
answers. Representative Austerman nentioned that he does not
see in HB 3 where it nentions the length of time for a
license. Representative Lynn said the basic prem se of the
bill is that the driver’s |icense would expire when |ega
status expires. Ms. Br ewst er agreed that was the
under standing of the bill.

3:02: 33 PM

Representative Austerman hypothesized if he left the state
for a few years, his license would expire. Representative
Lynn agreed that |egal docunmentation would need to be shown
bef ore recei ving a new Al aska driver’s i cense
Representative Austerman asked why new | anguage was being
added to identify the docunentation if it was already
required. Ms. Brewster answered that the |anguage is for
clarification in statute and to identify that those
currently in the state with a legal license do not have to
go through the process again.

3:05:41 PM

Representati ve Fai r cl ough asked, in response to
Representative Austerman’s question, if there were criteria

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



or a booklet listing the acceptable docunentation for a
driver’s license in other states. M. Brewster responded
that an out-of-state driver's license is not an accepted
primary formof identification.

3:07:19 PM

Representative Crawford noted in the proposed Amendnent #1
that if the word “solely” was deleted this would help where
they were going with Amendnent #2. M. Brooks conmmented t hat
Amendnent #1 is very simlar to the | anguage found in SB 202
speci fying that nothing would be done to conmply with the
Real 1D Act, while recognizing there was many worthwhile
things in the act. Amendnent #2 is nore specific in being
opposed to the Real ID Act. Co-Chair Stoltze indicated that
no vote woul d be taken today as nore discussion was needed.
Representative Crawford noted that if the word “solely” was
struck this may help lesson the inpression that there was
conpliance to the Real ID Act.

3:11:15 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze indicated that his staff nenber, M.
Mul Iigan, would work wth several legislators and the
sponsor of the bill to reach a consensus. Representative

Aust erman expressed that he just needed to understand the
bill better.

HB 3 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

3:13: 37 PM AT EASE
3:17: 08 PM RECONVENED

#hb20

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 20(FSH)
"An Act relating to comercial fishing | oans for energy
efficiency upgrades and increasing the maxi num anmount
for certain loans under the Commercial Fishing Loan
Act; and providing for an effective date.”

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGMON presented HB 20 which anends a
commercial fishing loan act to allow for a greater nunber of
fishermen to participate in an energy efficiency |oan

program This bill would allow for a fixed rate |oan for up
to 15 years at prime mnus 2 percent. Representative Edgnon
specified that the bill allows for Section A |oan

participants to participate in a loan program currently
confined to Section B participants. He el aborated that to be
a Section B participant, the fisherman nust have been turned
down by a bank, denonstrated that one-third of their gross
inconme derives fromcomercial fishing, and they are in the
| ow i ncome or poverty level. He differentiated that Section
A is a loan program up to $300,000, for conmercial

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



fi shermen who can denonstrate they have been in Al aska for
several years and fished the last 2 out of 5 years.
Representative Edgon noted that HB 20 also raises the
overall cap from Section A and Section B participants from
$300,000 to $400,000 and nmkes the new energy efficiency
program retroactive to Septenber 1, 2008 with an immediate
effective date.

3:21:13 PM

Representative Kelly questioned the delinquency rate of the
loan fund and who the bill msses. Representative Edgnon
responded that the loan portfolio is performng very well
which is why they are able to bring this forward.
Representative Kelly requested sonme nunbers for further
information. Co-Chair Stoltze asked for clarification if
this was incone based or by credit record.

3:22:32 PM

Representati ve Edgnon replied that there is no inconme |evels
in ternms of earning potential, but imts as to how nuch can
be borrowed under Section A and Section B. Section A has a
[imt of $300,000 and Section B with a |ower $100,000 cap
contains the additional requirenments that the fishernman nust
have been turned down by a bank and that one third of the
gross inconme conmes fromcomercial fishing. Co-Chair Stoltze
asked if there is any delineation for size of the operation.
Representative Edgnon responded that the ceiling would be
$400,000 in conmbination with the two |oan subsections. He
clarified that a fisherman would have to prove the ability
to repay the | oan over a 15 year period.

3:25:13 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked how the departnent evaluates a good
busi ness risk. Vice-Chair Thomas interjected that as a 40
year commercial fisherman, he never qualified for this |oan
because he has never been turned down by a bank. He believed
this loan could help his son obtain a down paynment for his
own operation. Representative Edgnon repeated there were two
different |oan sections. He noted that the change would
all ow Section A participants to cross over to Section B in
order to obtain nore energy efficiency |oans. He rem nded
that in Section B the fisherman has to be turned down by a
bank, but Section A does not have that requirenment. The
energy efficiency loan only resides in Section B; this bill
is trying to broaden the loan to include those only eligible
for Section A

3:27:25 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze illustrated that Vice-Chair Thomas could
not get this energy efficiency | oan because of his good past

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



behavi or practices. Vice-Chair Thomas favored this bill for
providing the neans to acquire nore fuel efficient vessels
especially since fishermen were traveling further offshore
to obtain nore wld stocks. He added this would help in
mar keting wild stock salnmon and in em ssion controls.

3:28: 44 PM

Representati ve Edgnon agreed the bill would enable soneone
like Vice-Chair Thomas, a Section A participant, to
participate in the energy efficiency program residing in
Section B. Representative Austerman contended that the
bill’s original purpose is for fishernen to acquire nore
energy efficient engines to help offset the high cost of
fuel s and reduce the carbon footprint in the ocean. He added
this would also allow boats to be geared with other energy
efficiency neans, such a adding a small w nd generator or
sol ar panel while in the harbor.

3:29:58 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas remarked that 5 to 10 percent of fuel can
be saved by changi ng the bow design on sone | arger boats.

3:30: 53 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if this bill also applies to the
health of the fisheries in rivers. Representative Edgnon
replied that many fishernmen travel a long way to the harvest
grounds; therefore nore efficient engines would inprove the
health of fisheries everywhere. He added that in this |ow
interest environnment fishermen could change to nore fuel
efficient vessels.

3:32:21 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the bill could help nodernize
boats in the big river systens. Representative Edgnon
replied that HB 20 addresses the commercial fishing |oan
program but within the portfolio there are smaller |oan
prograns available to help smaller vessels. Co-Chair Stoltze
wondered if off shore charter boats could be helped to burn

oil in a nore efficient manner and if this was consistent
with the bill’s idea to pronote fuel efficiency.

3:34:13 PM

Representative Austerman interjected that there was
di scussion on the charter boat issue, especially on |arger
river systenms, but it was outside the comercial |[|oan

program He added that an attenpt to classify sports charter
fishing as comercial fishing had been rejected by the
charter fishing boat operators. Vice-Chair Thomas reported
that many sport charter operators are not residents of the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



state. Representative Austernman nentioned that charter boats
from his region asked if they would be covered under this
bill, but indicated they were not willing to be classified
as commercial fishernen.

3:36: 08 PM

Representative Edgnon replied the bill’s intent was confined
to commercial fishernen.

3:37:09 PM

Represent ati ve Faircl ough supported the concept of the bill,
but not the fiscal note attached. She noticed that
departnments request new full tinme enployees (FTE) every tine
a new program is started. She asked Representative Edgnon
how much noney was currently in the fund. Representative
Edgnon responded that the position in the fiscal note is for
an anticipated need that wll be based on how many
participants come into the program He added the funds
derive from the portfolio itself with no general funds.
Representative Fairclough asked how many | oans, nmanaged by
the Depart nment of Commer ce, Community and Economc
devel opnment, were applied for in FYO8 and FY09, the val ue of
t he | oans, and how many FTE s presently manage it.

3:39:19 PM

GREG W NEGAR, DI RECTOR, ALASKA DIVISION OF | NVESTMENTS,
DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE presented an overview on the history
of the program Sixty mllion dollars were originally put
into the program and over $400 million has been distributed

in loans; it pays its owm way wth no expenses to the
general fund. The fiscal note was added for the position
because of an anticipated rise in demand once this bill is
i mpl emented. The departnment anticipates $4.8 nillion in
loans for the first year, but the position wll not be

filled unless needed. Co-Chair Stoltze asked if commrercia

charters would be eligible for this loan. M. Wnegar
replied that this program dating fromthe early 70s, is for
commercial fishermen not the charter boats as these are
totally different industries. A major change in the program
woul d be needed to incorporate the charter boat industry.

3:42: 55 PM

Representative Fairclough reiterated that she supports the
bill, but believed there is a consequence to the general
fund by w thdrawi ng out additional operating dollars. She
understood the interest that is earned off the fund is
dropped into the general fund, so there wll be Iess
interest if reducing the capital asset. M. Wnegar replied
that the interest goes into the fund, not the general fund.
It is a revolving fund so all the paynents, interest, and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



earnings on investnents, roll into the fund itself and all
the expenses are paid out of the fund. Representative
Fairclough referred to page 2, second paragraph of the
fiscal note:

Currently, <cash in the CFRLF is nanaged by the
Department of Revenue and is invested in short term
instruments that are yielding mnimal returns in this
interest rate environnent. These earning are retained
by the General Fund.

Representative Fairclough asked if this referred to the
general fund in CFRLF or the state of Alaska general fund.
M. Wnegar replied that basically the cash going into the
general fund right nowis mninmal. He noted that the fiscal
note refers to an indeterm nate change in the interest rate
charged by the loans, the 2 or 3 percent range, wth
expenses and |osses comng out that may have an i npact
dependi ng on ear ni ngs.

3:45: 00 PM

Representative Fairclough asked how nuch is in the current
fund. M. Wnegar projected that at the end of FY09, the
fund is around $30 million. The portfolio with interest and
principle is around $72 mllion; the total around $100
mllion. Representative Fairclough asked how many | oans are
managed in this division and how many loans this new FTE
position would manage. M. Wnegar estimated that the new
position would be working on $4.8 nmillion in |oans over and
beyond the current anmount. Representative Fairclough asked
again from the departnent’s perspective the utilization of
grant dollars generated fromthe state versus federal noney.

3:47:48 PM

W negar answered that the fund manages $204 million in
assets and |oans with over 2600 accounts, in addition, there
is cash nmanaged by Departnent of Revenue. Representative
Faircl ough asked how many FTE s are now nmanagi ng the 2600
accounts. M. Wnegar had percentages but not nunbers.
Representati ve Faircl ough replied she needs the nunbers. M.
W negar referred to a January 12, 2009 report that the total
del i nquency accounts were 2.8 percent, .1 percent in
foreclosure, 7.5 percent delinquent in comrercial fishing,
and .3 percent in foreclosure.

3:50:11 PM

Representative Austerman addressed the wllingness to
discuss the <charter sport operators. Co-Chair Stoltze
expressed his synpathy for hel ping the charter boat industry
as a statewide responsibility. Vice-Chair Thomas added t hat
his district has about 2300 commercial fishernmen. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



remarked that commercial fishernen are punished by the
excessive overfishing by charter boats. He declared he has
no problem helping the small charter vessel wth fuel
efficiency prograns, but not the large out-of-state
operators.

3:56:34 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze indicated this bill would require another
hearing to refine sonme of the questions asked.

Representative Fairclough wondered with the $72 million in
the fund, wth the expected $4.2 million increase in
requested | oans, would the noney cone out of the $72 million
or the $30 million cash flow. She requested clarification
that in the $204 nillion in outstanding loans, if the
mont hly paynments return to the fund to create the cash fl ow
M. Wnegar agreed that was correct; it is a revolving
process. Representative Fairclough asked if the $4.2 mllion
will reduce the earning ability of the assets just sitting,
or increase because it is getting paid a fixed interest rate
fromthe funds being | oaned against. M. Wnegar agreed that
was correct. He pointed out that of the $60 mllion
originally put into the fund over $100 nmillion had cone out
and a | arge anmount has reverted into the general fund or to
support other organizations, such as the Departnent of Fish
and Ganme. Representative Fairclough asked if she could be
provi ded informati on on what was contributed to the general
fund in FYO8 and FYO09.

4:00: 03 PM

HB 20 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:00 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/17/09 1:39 P. M



